UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 7
901 NORTH FIFTH STREET UNITED STATES
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101 ENVIRONMENTAL
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IN THE MATTER OF: )
)
SIOUX CITY, IOWA (THE CITY OF) ) DOCKET NO. CWA-07-2012-0016
)
Respondent )
) COMPLAINT AND
Proceedings under ) CONSENT AGREEMENT/
Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act, ) FINAL ORDER
33 U.S.C. § 1319(g) )
)
COMPLAINT
Jurisdiction

1. This is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties instituted pursuant to
Section 309(g) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, commonly referred to as the Clean Water
Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and in accordance with the United States Environmental Protection
Agency's (EPA’s) Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil
Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (Consolidated
Rules of Practice).

2. This Complaint and Consent Agreement/Final Order serves as notice that the EPA has reason
to believe that Respondent violated Sections 301 and 307 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1317, and
a permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

Parties

3. The authority to take action under Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), is vested
in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator has delegated this authority to the Regional
Administrator, EPA Region 7, who in turn has delegated it to the Director of the Wetlands and
Pesticides Division of EPA Region 7 (Complainant).

4. Respondent is the city of Sioux City, lowa (hereafter, City or Respondent), a municipality
organized under the laws of the state of lowa and authorized to conduct business in the state of Towa.
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Statutory and Regulatory Framework

5. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants except
in compliance with, inter alia, Sections 307 and 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1317 and 1342. Section
402 of the CWA provides that pollutants may be discharged only in accordance with the terms of a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued pursuant to that Section.
Section 307 provides for the promulgation of regulations establishing pretreatment standards for
introduction of pollutants into Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW), as defined at 40 C.F.R. §
403.3(k).

6. The Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) is the state agency with the
authority to administer the federal NPDES and Pretreatment programs in lowa pursuant to Sections 402
and 307 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1342 and 1317, respectively, and applicable implementing
regulations, including 40 C.F.R. Part 403. As such, the IDNR is the Pretreatment “Control Authority,”
as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 403.3(f).

7. Pursuant to Section 402(i) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(i), the EPA retains concurrent
enforcement authority with authorized states for violations of the CWA.

8. The City is a “person” as defined by Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

9. The City owns and operates a POTW, as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 403.3(q), that receives and
treats wastewater from various domestic, commercial and industrial sources.

10. The City’s POTW discharges to the Missouri River.

11. The POTW is a “point source™ that “discharges pollutants” into “navigable waters” of the
United States, as these terms are defined by Section 502 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362.

12. The City’s discharge of pollutants from the POTW is subject to the provisions of the CWA,
33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq., requires a permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA,33US.C. §
1342,

Factual Backeround

13. On or about October 25, 2006, IDNR granted NPDES permit number 1A0043095 (hereafter
“NPDES permit”) to the Respondent for discharges from the POTW to the Missouri River subject to
compliance with conditions and limitations set forth in the NPDES permit. The NPDES permit expired
on October 24, 2011, but has been administratively extended by IDNR.

14. The City’s NPDES permit requires the City to, among other things, a) require all users of
the POTW to comply with pretreatment requirements of Sections 204(b), 307 and 308 of the CWA, 33
U.S.C. §§ 1284(b), 1317 and 130, and b) implement its Pretreatment Program approved by IDNR on
June 12, 1984, and any amendments thereto.
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15. Section 307 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1307, and regulations promulgated thereunder at 40
C.F.R. Part 403, require a POTW with an Approved Pretreatment Program to, among other things:

a. with regard to 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(c)(1), develop and effectively enforce specific limits to
implement the prohibitions listed in 40 C.F.R. 403.5(a)(1) and (b);

b. Pretreatment regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(4) prohibit the introduction into a
POTW any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants, at a flow rate and/or
pollutant concentration which will cause interference at a POTW;

c. with regard to 40 C.F.R. § 403.8(f), at all times fully and effectively exercise and
implement legal authority to:

() pursuant to § 403.5(f)(1)(iii), control through permit, order, or similar means, the
contributions to the POTW by each Industrial User to ensure compliance with
applicable Pretreatment Standards and Requirement;

(i) pursuant to § 403.5(f)(2)(vii), investigate instances of noncompliance with
Pretreatment Standards and Requirements as indicated in reports and notices
required to be submitted by Industrial Users pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 403.12 or in
analysis preformed by the POTW;

(ii1) pursuant to § 403.5(f)(2)(viii)(A), provide at least annual public notification in a
newspaper of general circulation significant noncompliance (SNC) by Industrial
Users at any time during the previous 12 months, including chronic violations of
Industrial User wastewater discharge limitations (i.e., 66 percent or more of all
compliance measurements of the same pollutant parameter during a 6-month period
exceed the limitation); and

d. with regard to 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(f)(5), develop and implement an enforcement response
plan with detailed procedures to investigate and respond to instances of Industrial User
noncompliance.

16. Respondent’s approved Pretreatment Program includes, but is not limited to, an Enforcement
Response Plan (ERP) approved by the IDNR in 1990 and legal authority to administer the program
adopted as Sioux City Municipal Code Chapters 13.07 and 13.08 (Code).

17. On March 29 through 31, 2010, the EPA performed a Pretreatment Program Audit (Audit)
of the City’s Pretreatment Program implementation activities pursuant to the authority of Section 308(a)
of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a). A copy of the Audit report was sent to the IDNR and the City on or
around July 22, 2010.

18. During the Audit, EPA auditor interviewed City Pretreatment personnel, reviewed
documents, including the City’s sewer use ordinance, ERP, records maintained by the City regarding it
implementation of the Pretreatment Program, and Biosolids Management Program. The EPA auditor
also performed a visual inspection of the City’s Biosolids land application field.
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19. On or about November 19, 2010, the EPA received a response from the City to a request for
information (hereafter “EPA Information Request”) issued by the EPA to the City on October 5, 2010,
under the authority of Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a).

Findings of Violation

20. Based on observations documented during the EPA Audit and review of information
provided by the City during the Audit and in response to the EPA Information Request, the EPA finds
that the City violated the terms and conditions of its NPDES permit and authorized Pretreatment
Program, including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Failing to develop local limits for Industrial Users in compliance with 40 C.F.R. §
403.5(c)(1) that implement 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(4), by prohibiting the introduction into
a POTW any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants at a flow rate and/or
pollutant concentration which will cause interference at a POTW. The City was unable
to demonstrate that its allocation of oxygen demanding pollutants and total suspended
solids to Industrial Users at the time of the Audit was calculated in a manner desi gned
to protect the POTW from interference.

b. Failing to control through permit, order, or similar means, the contributions to the
POTW by each Industrial User to ensure compliance with applicable Pretreatment
Standards and Requirements, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 403.8(f)(1)(iii). The City
failed between approximately March 2, 2010, and August 16, 2010, to reissue
Pretreatment permits to its seventeen Significant Industrial Users.

¢. Failing to investigate instances of noncompliance with Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements by Industrial Users, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 403 .8(f)(2)(vii), and to
implement an ERP to respond to instances of Industrial User noncompliance, as
required by 40 C.F.R. § 403.8(f)(5). The City failed to identify instances of SNC by
Curley’s Foods in 2008 and Mars Petcare in 2009 for monthly average violations of
their permit limits, and to take appropriate enforcement actions, as set forth in its ERP,
in response to such Industrial User SNC. At the initiation of the Audit, the City was not
able to locate its ERP and needed to obtain a copy from IDNR.

d. Failing to provide at least annual newspaper public notification of SNC by Industrial
Users during the previous 12 months, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 403.8(f)(2)(viii)(A).
The City failed to provide public notice regarding SNC by Curley’s Foods in 2008 and
by Mars Petcare in 2009, and included three Industrial Users that had been in SNC
dating back to 2007 in its public notice for the year 2010, thus failing to provide
adequate public notice and an effective opportunity for public participation.

21. Respondent’s violations identified in Paragraph 20, subparagraphs a through d, above, are
violations of the requirement of NPDES Permit No. IA0043095 to implement its Approved Pretreatment
Program, and as such are violations of Sections 301(a) and 307(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a)
and 1317(d), and regulations promulgated thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 403.
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22. Pursuant to Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), it is proposed that a civil
penalty be assessed against Respondent for the violations of the CWA identified above, the amount of
which is set forth in Paragraph 23 below.

CONSENT AGREEMENT

23. Pursuant to Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), the nature of the violations,
Respondent's agreement to perform a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) and other relevant
factors, the EPA has determined that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is Seventeen
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($17,500).

24. Respondent and EPA agree to the terms of this Consent Agreement/Final Order and
Respondent consents for the purposes of settlement to the payment of the civil penalty cited in the
foregoing Paragraph and to the performance of the Supplemental Environmental Project described
below, which the parties agree is intended to secure significant environmental and/or public health
benefits.

25. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations of this Complaint and Consent
Agreement/Final Order and agrees not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction in this proceeding or any
subsequent proceeding to enforce the terms of the Final Order.

26. Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations and legal conclusions contained
in this Complaint and Consent Agreement/Final Order.

27. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal this Consent
Agreement and the accompanying proposed Final Order.

28. Respondent and Complainant each agree to resolve the matters set forth in this Consent
Agreement/Final Order without the necessity of a formal hearing and agree to bear their own costs and
attorney’s fees.

29. Respondent certifies by signing this Consent Agreement/Final Order that Respondent is
presently in compliance with all requirements of the CWA and the Approved Pretreatment Program
under its NPDES Permit.

30. Nothing contained in this Compliant and Consent Agreement/Final Order shall relieve
Respondent of its obligation to comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state, or local law, nor
shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state, or local
permit.

31. In settlement of this matter, Respondent shall complete the following SEP, which the parties
agree is intended to secure significant environmental or public health protection and improvements.

a. Project Description: Respondent shall construct and thereafter maintain for no less than
two years, a Rain Garden measuring at least 13,000 square foot at West 18" and Center
Streets in Sioux City, lowa, for the purpose of treating urban stormwater runoff prior to
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its infiltration into the ground or flowing into Perry Creek. The project is identified as the
Phase I Rain Garden and further described in Appendix A of this Consent Agreement and
Final Order;

. SEP Cost: the total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than $32,000;

. Completion Date: all work on the project shall be completed and the Rain Garden will be

placed into active service by no later than November 30, 2012, unless Respondent
submits a written request with substantiation to the EPA by no later than October 31 ,
2012, for an extension of time to complete the SEP until the next construction season.
Such extension request shall specify a date for project completion by no later than two
months into the estimated beginning date for the next construction season.

32. Within thirty (30) days of the SEP Completion Date, as identified in Paragraph 31.c. above,
Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA, with a copy to the state agency identified

below.

a.

The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following:

(i) A detailed description of the SEP as implemented;

(i) Itemized costs, documented by copies of records such as purchase orders, receipts
or canceled checks; and

(iii) The following certification signed by Respondent or its authorized representative:

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the information
submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inquiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, the information is
true, accurate, and complete. 1 am aware that there are significant penalties for
submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment.

b. The SEP Completion Report and all other submittals regarding the SEP shall be sent to:

Robert Bryant

WWPD/WENF

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7

901 North 5™ Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101,

c. Respondent agrees that failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required by

subsections a, and b, above shall be deemed a violation of this Consent Agreement and
Order and Respondent shall become liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to Paragraph
35 below.
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33. Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect the facility at any time in order to confirm that the
SEP is being undertaken in conformity with the representations made herein.

34. Respondent shall continuously maintain, use and/or operate the systems installed as the SEP
for not less than two (2) year following its installation.

35. Stipulated Penalties for Failure to Complete SEP/Failure to Spend Agreed-on Amount:

a. In the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions of this
Agreement relating to the performance of the SEP described in Paragraph 31 above
and/or to the extent that the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed the
SEP Cost described in Paragraph 31.b, above, Respondent shall be liable for stipulated
penalties according to the provisions set forth below:

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (ii) immediately below, for a SEP which has
not been completed satisfactorily pursuant to this Consent Agreement and Order,
Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of
$37,000;

(ii) If the SEP is completed in accordance with Paragraph 31, but the Respondent spent
less than 90 percent of the amount of money required to be spent for the project,
Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of
$5,000.

(iif)Respondent shall not be liable for stipulated penalties if:

(a) the SEP is not completed in accordance with Paragraph 31, but the
Complainant determines that the Respondent: (1) made good faith and timely
efforts to complete the project; and (2) certifies, with supporting
documentation, that at least 90 percent of the amount of money which was
required to be spent was expended on the SEP; or

(b) the SEP is completed in accordance with Paragraph 31, and the Respondent spent
at least 90 percent of the amount of money required to be spent for the project.

(iv) Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of $100 for each day:

(a) it fails to submit the SEP Completion Report after the due date specified in
Paragraph 32 above, until the report is submitted; and

(b) it fails to submit any other report required by Paragraphs 31 or 32 above, after the
report was originally due until the report is submitted.

b.  The determinations of whether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed and whether the
Respondent has made a good faith, timely effort to implement the SEP shall be in the sole
discretion of EPA.

d. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties not more than fifteen (15) days after receipt of
written demand by EPA for such penalties. Interest and late charges shall be paid as stated
in Paragraph 39, below. Method of payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of
Paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Final Order, below.
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36. Respondent certifies that it is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal,
state or local law or regulation; nor is Respondent required to perform or develop the SEP by agreement,
grant or as injunctive relief in this or any other case or to comply with state or local requirements.
Respondent further certify / certifies that Respondent has have not received, and is not presently
negotiating to receive, credit in any other enforcement action for the SEP.

37. Respondent further certifies that it is not a party to any open federal financial assistance
transaction that is funding or could be used to fund the same activity as the SEP. Respondent further
certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief after reasonable inquiry, there is no such open
federal financial transaction that is funding or could be used to fund the same activity as the SEP, nor
has the same activity been described in an unsuccessful federal financial assistance transaction proposal
submitted to the EPA within two years of the date of this settlement (unless the project was barred from
funding as statutorily ineligible). For the purposes of this certification, the term "open federal financial
assistance transaction" refers to a grant, cooperative agreement, loan, federally-guaranteed loan
guarantee or other mechanism for providing federal financial assistance whose performance period has
not yet expired.

38. Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film or other media, made by Respondent
making reference to the SEP shall include the following language: “This project was undertaken in
connection with the settlement of an enforcement action taken by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency.”

39. Respondent understands that its failure to timely pay any portion of the civil penalty
described in Paragraph 1 of the Final Order below or any portion of a stipulated penalty as stated in
Paragraph 35 above may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to
recover the full remaining balance, along with penalties and accumulated interest. In such case, interest
shall accrue thereon at the applicable statutory rate on the unpaid balance until such civil or stipulated
penalty and any accrued interest are paid in full. A late payment handling charge of $15 will be imposed
after thirty (30) days and an additional $15 will be charge for each subsequent thirty (30) day period.
Additionally, as provided by 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a penalty (late charge) may be assessed on any
amount not paid within ninety (90) days of the due date.

40. Respondent consent that neither the civil penalty payment made nor any costs or
expenditures incurred by Respondent in performing the SEP pursuant to this Complaint and Consent
Agreement/Final Order will be deducted for purposes of federal taxes.

41. This Consent Agreement/Final Order addresses all civil administrative claims for CWA
violations identified above. Complainant reserves the right to take any enforcement action with respect
to other violations of the CWA or any other applicable law.

42. The effect of settlement described in Paragraph 41 above is conditioned upon the accuracy
of the Respondent’s representations to EPA, memorialized in Paragraph 29.

43. Each signatory to this Agreement certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the
terms and conditions of this Complaint and Consent Agreement/Final Order.,
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FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and based upon information
contained in this Consent Agreement, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Seventeen Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($17,500)
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Final Order. Payment shall identify the Respondent
by name and docket number and shall be made by certified or cashier’s check made payable to
“Treasurer, United States of America,” and remitted to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000.

Copies of the check shall be mailed to:

Kathy Robinson

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
901 North 5" Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

and

Patricia Gillispie Miller

Senior Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
901 North 5™ Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

2. Should the civil penalty not be paid as provided above, interest will be assessed at the annual
rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. The interest will be
assessed on the overdue amount from the due date through the date of payment. Failure to pay the civil
penalty when due may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to collect
said penalty, together with costs and interest thereon.

3. Respondent shall complete the Supplemental Environmental Project in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Consent Agreement and shall be liable for any stipulated penalty for failure to
complete such project as specified in the Consent Agreement.

4. Respondent and Complainant shall pay their own costs and attorneys’ fees incurred as a result
of this action.
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5. EPA reserves the right to enforce the terms of this Final Order by initiating a judicial or
administrative action pursuant to Section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319,

6. With respect to matters not addressed in this Final Order, EPA reserves the right to take any
enforcement action pursuant to the CWA, or any other available legal authority, including without
limitation, the right to seek injunctive relief, monetary penalties and for punitive damages.

7. This Final Order shall be effective upon receipt by Respondent of a fully executed copy
hereof. All time periods herein shall be calculated therefrom unless otherwrise provided in this Final
Order.

8. This executed Complaint and Consent Agreement/Final Order shall be filed with the Regional
Hearing Clerk, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 901 North 5™ Street, Kansas City, Kansas
66101.

FOR COMPLAINANT:
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Q-/10712

Date

Karen A. Flournoy
Director
Water, Wetlands and Pesticides Division

G ———

Patricia Gillispie Miller
Senior Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel
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FOR RESPONDENT:
CITY OF SIOUX CITY, IOWA
< I—s
July 17, 2012
Date Signature

Name: Paul Eckert

Title: City Manager
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IT IS SO ORDERED.

sof 17200 AP

Date Robert L. Patrick
Regional Judicial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Order was sent this day in the following
manner to the addressees:

Copy hand delivered to
Attorney for Complainant:

Patrici Gillispie Miller

Senior Counsel

Region 7

United States Environmental Protection Agency
901 N. 5% Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

Copy by First Class Certified Mail to:

The Honorable Bob Scott, Mayor
City of Souix City

PO Box 447

Sioux City, lowa 51102

Copy by First Class Mail to:

Pennis Ostwinkle, Supervisor
IDNR Field Office #6

1023 West Madison Street
Washington, Iowa 52353-1623

Ken Hessenius, Supervisor

IDNR Field Office #3

1900 North Grand Avenue, Suite E17
Spencer, lowa 51301

AT L

Kathy Robinkgn
Hearing Clerk, Region 7
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SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION






VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.

203 Seryyoant Square Or., Suite 8 + PO Box 220
Sergeant Biuff, lowa 51054-0220

e 20435055 « 712-043-5088(FAX) + §77-241-6009(WATS)
June 7, 2012
~ Derek Carmona
Environmental Services Analyst
Utllities Department
City of Sioux City

RE: Raingarden Proposal ~ West 18" and Center Streets
Scope of the project

This project consists of providing services to design a 28,000 square feet Rain Garden to treat
stormwater runoff from a parking lot and streets at the corner of West 18" Streat and Center Street
in Sioux City. The intent is to catch the runoff from parking lots, buildings, and adjacent pavements
and provide treatment prior to the water infiftrating Into the ground or flowing into the Perry Creek
stream. Includied in the ares is drainage from an animal hospital, possibly containing fecal
contamination, as well as runoff from other businesses. Excess water from the dralnage area will be
routed around, or overflowed from, the rain garden.

An existing inlet to Prairle Creek located at the east side of the proposed rain garden will be
converted to use as the overflow point for water in excess of the rain garden capacity. If an under
drain system is designed in the rain garden, then the draintile outiet will be connected to the inlet.

A gravel walkway through the rain garden will aliow access to the granular Prairle Creek watkway.
The Project Is anticipated to be constructed in two phases. Phase I (13,000 sf) is from the Prairle
Creek berm west to the gravel entrance to the animal hospital. Phase II (15,000 sf) is the remaining
area west to Center Street. Attached is a general plan of the vicinity showing the general location
of the rain garden and phasing. A mixture of vegetation will be recommended for the proposed rain
garden with an intent ta include low maintenance native grasses (as much as possible) and selection
of plants to present a clean appearance.
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VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.

203 Sergeant Square Dr., Suite B = PO Box 220

Preliminary work plan for the project

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc {V&K) will compiete a small topographic survey of the area to determine the
design limits of the rain garden and subsequent drainage. [The Clty may elect to use their own
survey staff,] V&K will then outline the crainage area and determine flows to be treated based on
the rational method. Based on the available area for the rain garden, V&K wil} determine the amount
of runoff that can e treated in the area available compared to the amount of water that needs to be
treated. If there is a disparity, V&K will confer with city stafT to decide whether to tregt as much

runoff as possible to the full extent of the capacity of the proposed rain garden or whether to provide
a lesser amount of treatment for a iarger amount of runoff.

V&K will prepare cost estimates for the construction of the project. The intent will be to prepare an
initial phase to cost $25,000 or less so the project can be let with competitive quotes. Desigr: will be
prepared for both phases, assuming eventual construction of all.

Y&K will prepare plans and specifications for the facilities in preparation for bidding the project, or
taking competitive quctes. The design will include plan sheets at 11"x17” size showing an overal! site
plan and typical cross sections with rain garden details. Pians will show the project in sufficient detail
tc construct the project, but will not include detailed contours, piping plan and profiles, or other
design data that may be in a complex paving or sewer project.

During the construction phase, V&K will provide staking services to establish overall areas, piping
grades and rain garden elevations for the Contractor. Construction observation may be provided to
ensure the design is followed by the Contractor. V&K, if desired, will provide periodic visits to the site
by an engineer to monitor progress. V&K will prepare pay estimates and change orders as needed.
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VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.

203 Sergeant Square Dr., Suite B * PO Box 220
Bluff, lowa 510580220

y _ ; 712-843-5058 » T12-543-5058{FAX) » 877-241-8009(?\&47'3%

Proposed Project Schedule:

Following Is a schedule for design, quotation and construction of the project. If notice to proceed is
delayed, the schedule will be modified accordingly. It is assumed that only Phase I can be
constructed this year.

Task e Day Task Completion
Approval to Proceed , { June 15, 2012
| Survey Complete 7 June 22, 2012
Drafting of Preliminary Plan of Existing Site 14 July 29, 2012
Hydrologic Calculations 20 July 5, 2012
Preparation of Proposed Cross Sections 20 July §, 2012
¥ Submittal of Plans and Specs 31 July 16, 2012
' Accept Competitive Quotes 47 Avzust 1, 2012
Commence Construction (Phase [ only) 61 August 15, 2012
| Sceding and Piantings (Phase [ only) 76 August 30, 2012

Cost Estimate for Engineering Services:

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc will perform the services in this project on an hourly basis for the rates listed
beiow:. The subtotal shown for the design Phase will be an amount not to be exceaded without prior
approval of the City. Individual line items may be exceeded as long as the total is not.

Cesign Phase (Both Phases)
Item Rate Unit | Quantity Total
Survey Crew $1,000 day | 075 $750
CADD _ $50 hour 40 2,000
Engineering Manager $100 hour 4 400

| Engineering Designer $86 Hour 10 860
Clericai $36 hour 10 360

(SubtotalCost | | = $4,370

Bid Phase {assuming Competitive Quotrs)

i Item : Rate Unit | Quantity Total
Engineering Manager $100 hour 2 $200
Enginecring Designer 486 i Hour 5 430
Clerical $36 | hour 5 180
Subtotal Cost $810
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Construction Phase (Phase I only)

Item Rate : Unit ; Quantity Totai

Survey Crew $1,000 Day 0.75 $750

Engineer £86 Hour 10 860

Clerical $36 dour : 10 360

[ Subtotal Cost $1,570
Proposal Summary:

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. is excited for the opportunity to work with the City of Sioux City on this
project. Our firm has remained active in the post-construction requirements for the MS4 Cities in
Towa. Our firm is committed to providing sound, affordable, and functional designs in the areas of
rain garden construction. We are also dedicated to the needs of the client and willing to implement
ideas the City staff may provide.

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. employs multiple englneers with experience in rain garden design and can
offer the expertise from projects not only In Iowa, but in cther regions of the United States. We iook
forward to the opportunity to get on board with the first of many rain garden projects that the City
has and will plan for in the future.

Please do not hesitate to call me if there are any items of this proposal in need of clarification.

Sincerely,

fw 5

Aaron Lincoln, PE

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.
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